






 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments
from untrusted sources.

From: Nicholas Pigott
To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS); Stefani, Catherine (BOS); Marstaff (BOS); PrestonStaff (BOS); ChanStaff (BOS); Haneystaff

(BOS); MelgarStaff (BOS); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; RonenStaff (BOS); Safai, Ahsha (BOS); Waltonstaff (BOS);
Board of Supervisors, (BOS)

Cc: Hepner, Lee (BOS); Alexis Pelosi
Subject: 1525 Pine Street (BOS File No 210901)
Date: Sunday, October 17, 2021 3:46:36 PM
Attachments: 1525 Pine Street - Letter from Project Sponsor re Grubstake Committment Attachments (BOS File No. 210901)

copy.pdf

 

President Walton and Supervisors,
 
As the project sponsors and owners and operators of the Grubstake restaurant, we respectfully
submit the attached letter expressing not only our commitment to the continued operation of the
Grubstake restaurant but outlining our obligation under the approvals granted for the project to do
so.  
 
Nick and Jimmy

----------------------

Nicholas Pigott
c. 206.920.7003
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Jimmy Consos
To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS); Stefani, Catherine (BOS); Marstaff (BOS); PrestonStaff (BOS); ChanStaff (BOS); Haneystaff

(BOS); MelgarStaff (BOS); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; RonenStaff (BOS); Safai, Ahsha (BOS); Waltonstaff (BOS);
Board of Supervisors, (BOS)

Subject: For Public Record: Grubstake Support!
Date: Friday, October 15, 2021 2:49:09 PM

 

Dear Board President Walton and Supervisors,
 
On behalf of Juanita MORE!, Empress of the Imperial Court of San Francisco, I am submitting an
article from the Bold Italic, Let’s Talk About the Grubstake Diner, written by Juanita MORE! I am
sharing the article because it aptly captures the importance of preserving the Grubstake for current
and future generations of the LGBTQ+ community.
 
The article can be viewed here: https://thebolditalic.com/lets-talk-about-the-grubstake-diner-
48dbb8007ff1
 
Thank you, and please enter the article into the record for the Grubstake project.

Truly,
Jimmy Consos
Grubstake Diner 
1525 Pine St., San Francisco, California 94109
Tel: 415.895.2130
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From: Susana Gonzales
To: Peskin, Aaron (BOS); Stefani, Catherine (BOS); Marstaff (BOS); PrestonStaff (BOS); ChanStaff (BOS); Haneystaff

(BOS); MelgarStaff (BOS); MandelmanStaff, [BOS]; RonenStaff (BOS); Safai, Ahsha (BOS); Waltonstaff (BOS);
Board of Supervisors, (BOS); sfgrubstake@gmail.com

Subject: Support Rebuilding Grubstake Diner
Date: Thursday, October 14, 2021 11:51:23 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Supervisor Peskin and Supervisors,<BR><BR>The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+
community, and I am pleased to express my support for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting
over six-years to redevelop the site with 21-units of middle-income housing over a new Grubstake Diner, the project
continues to face opposition from adjacent residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood. <BR>
<BR>The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address its next-door neighbors' concerns, including having a
light analysis prepared that found the project meets CEQA requirements and the units would still receive light from
the interior courtyard which with a matching lightwell on the project would be greater than 25 by 25 feet.
Additionally, even though residents of the Austin will receive sufficient sunlight and the project does not pose a
health and safety hazard, the project sponsor has in good faith voluntarily added UV lights to its building, timed to
match daylight hours to enhance the light in the interior courtyard further. <BR><BR>Despite these efforts, some
owners at the Austin have continued their years-long abuse of the City's land use entitlement process, appealing the
Mitigated Negative Declaration granted for the project by the Planning Commission, citing the impact on the light,
air, and private terraces of the existing building's units, as well as the project's lack of parking, and the "over-supply
of housing in the neighborhood." <BR><BR>The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have
tried in every way possible to file appeals to various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any
additional height adjacent to their building. It is important to note that all owners at the Austin were required to sign
pre-sale disclosures stating the Grubstake site would be developed, and that light, air, and views on the eastern side
of the building where the lightwell exists would be impacted.<BR><BR>The project sponsor is using the State
Density Bonus Program (SDBP), which encourages developers to elevate the height and development capacity of a
project in order to generate increased housing in urban neighborhoods. The SDBP provides more flexibility in
planning and financing new home development and will help ensure the viability of this important LGBTQ+
preservation project. <BR><BR>The Grubstake team has made every attempt possible to address any issues brought
forth by the Austin residents and we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and deny this
frivolous appeal.

mailto:smgonzales531@gmail.com
mailto:aaron.peskin@sfgov.org
mailto:catherine.stefani@sfgov.org
mailto:marstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:prestonstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:ChanStaff@sfgov.org
mailto:haneystaff@sfgov.org
mailto:haneystaff@sfgov.org
mailto:MelgarStaff@sfgov.org
mailto:mandelmanstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:ronenstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:ahsha.safai@sfgov.org
mailto:waltonstaff@sfgov.org
mailto:board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org
mailto:sfgrubstake@gmail.com


From: Evelyn Ramirez
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
Date: Thursday, October 14, 2021 11:05:18 PM

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources.

Dear Supervisor Peskin and Supervisors,
The Grubstake Diner holds great importance to the LGBTQ+ community, and I am pleased to express my support
for the rebuilding of this community treasure. After waiting over six-years to redevelop the site with 21-units of
middle-income housing over a new Grubstake Diner, the project continues to face opposition from adjacent
residents who only recently moved into the neighborhood.
The Grubstake team has worked tirelessly to address its next-door neighbors' concerns, including having a light
analysis prepared that found the project meets CEQA requirements and the units would still receive light from the
interior courtyard which with a matching lightwell on the project would be greater than 25 by 25 feet. Additionally,
even though residents of the Austin will receive sufficient sunlight and the project does not pose a health and safety
hazard, the project sponsor has in good faith voluntarily added UV lights to its building, timed to match daylight
hours to enhance the light in the interior courtyard further.
Despite these efforts, some owners at the Austin have continued their years-long abuse of the City's land use
entitlement process, appealing the Mitigated Negative Declaration granted for the project by the Planning
Commission, citing the impact on the light, air, and private terraces of the existing building's units, as well as the
project's lack of parking, and the "over-supply of housing in the neighborhood."
The residents of the neighboring Austin condominium building have tried in every way possible to file appeals to
various aspects of the project while their sole intent is to block any additional height adjacent to their building. It is
important to note that all owners at the Austin were required to sign pre-sale disclosures stating the Grubstake site
would be developed, and that light, air, and views on the eastern side of the building where the lightwell exists
would be impacted.
The project sponsor is using the State Density Bonus Program (SDBP), which encourages developers to elevate the
height and development capacity of a project in order to generate increased housing in urban neighborhoods. The
SDBP provides more flexibility in planning and financing new home development and will help ensure the viability
of this important LGBTQ+ preservation project.
The Grubstake team has made every attempt possible to address any issues brought forth by the Austin residents and
we hope that you see the value of this project in its proposed form and deny this frivolous appeal.

- Evelyn Reyes
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: Hepner, Lee (BOS)
To: BOS-Operations; BOS Legislation, (BOS); Somera, Alisa (BOS); Calvillo, Angela (BOS)
Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS)
Subject: FW: Background on The Grubstake
Date: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 2:22:46 PM

Please include the below correspondence in the public file for the 1525 Pine St. appeal on this
afternoon’s agenda.
 
Thanks,
 
Lee Hepner
Legislative Aide
Supervisor Aaron Peskin
(415) 554-7419 | pronouns: he, him, his
 
District 3 Website
Sign up for our newsletter here!
 
 
 

From: Gerard Koskovich <gkoskovich@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2021 11:35 AM
To: Hepner, Lee (BOS) <lee.hepner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Background on The Grubstake
 

 

Lee,

At the end of this email you'll find my partial list of sources demonstrating the importance of The
Grubstake as a historic element of the built environment in representations of San Francisco's queer
culture.  

Among other things, you'll see that the diner has inspired two songs — a rap song and a transgender
ballad — that have been released as recordings with music videos portraying the actual location.  
 
Here's the national organization I mentioned:

Dining Car Society
https://www.diningcarsociety.org/

 
Here's a Facebook post from the Preserving LGBTQ Historic Sites in California group for which Shayne
and I are administrators — with a quote from a talk about missing and endangered queer historic sites in
the city which I've given in a number of venues including at Birkbeck University of London:

https://www.facebook.com/PreservingLGBTHistory/posts/1635685189885261
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And here's a Facebook post about the meeting the GLBT Historical Society Historic-Places Working
Group had with Jimmy Consos and his team:

https://www.facebook.com/PreservingLGBTHistory/posts/1888634967923614
 
Let me know if I can be of further assistance.

Best,
 
Gerard

 
__________________
MEMOIRS

Bambi Lake. The Unsinkable Bambi Lake: A Fairy Tale Containing the Dish on Cockettes, Punks,
and Angels (Manic D Press, 1996), page 30. Bambi Lake met Hibiscus, the star of The Cockettes, for the
first time at the Grubstake in the early 1970s. Includes the diner in her poem "The Golden Age of
Hustlers," pages 85–91 (later adapted into a song). A revised edition of the book was issued in 2017.
 
Cleve Jones. When We Rise: My Life in the Movement (Hachette Books, 2016), page 30. Cleve Jones
frequented the diner when he first moved to San Francisco.
 
__________________
GUIDES (SELECTED)
 
André Gayot, Jeffrey Hirsch & Laura Reiley. The Best of San Francisco and Northern California
(Gault Millau, 1994): "The burgers here are no more than decent, but they taste just fine at 4 a.m., when
San Francisco's dining options are limited in the extreme."
 
Featured in a "Clip-n-Save Sleaze Tour" in Curve: The Lesbian Magazine, vol. 12 (2002): 28.
 
Laura Borman. Discovering Vintage San Francisco: A Guide to the City’s Timeless Eateries, Bars,
Shops and More (Rowman & Littlefield, 2015): 61–64.

_________________
NOVELS
 
Setting for a scene in Sheldon Siegel, Final Verdict (Penguin Group, 2004), pages 141ff. A detective
novel in the series featuring fictional San Francisco lawyer Mike Daley.
 
__________________
NONFICTION BOOKS
 
Michael R. Corbett. Splendid Survivors: San Francisco's Downtown Architectural Heritage
(California Living Books, 1979), page 76.
 
Will Roscoe. Queer Spirits: A Gay Men's Myth Book (Beacon Press, 1995), page 291.
 
Leigh W. Rutledge. The Gay decades: From Stonewall to the Present—The People and Events
That Shaped Gay Lives (Plume, 1992), page 90. In 1978, The Grubstake was one of several San
Francisco enterprises targeted by an armed robber who held them up because, as he later confessed, he
hated gay businesses.



 
___________________
TELEVISION & VIDEO
 
Diners, Drive-Ins and Dives starring Guy Fieri (Food Network, 2008).

"Grubstake" from the album "Are You Gonna Eat That?" by Hail Mary Mallon (Rhymesayers, 2011);
song & music video: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ch2Xvp1YPyU
 
"The Golden Age of Hustlers" starring Obie winner and Tony nominee Justin Vivian Bond (2014); lyrics
by Bambi Lake; music video directed by Silas Howard: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fwr0pFho32E

Sticks and Stones: Bambi Lake (2015), documentary short directed by Silas Howard:
https://vimeo.com/138625199
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18. Brian O Connell (ZIP code: 94587)
Whenever I got to a late night event in SF, no matter how out of the way, I always stop at Grubbstake
on the way home!

19. James Mccarty (ZIP code: 94114)
Gone there for over 50 years.  Back in the ‘70s, it was a wonderful late nite crossroads for all kinds of
gay after the bars closed.

20. Carrie  Tacla (ZIP code: 94109)
Please don’t destroy a unique and special part of SF history!

21. Catherine Wu (ZIP code: 94109)

22. Craig Gordon (ZIP code: 97520)

Lived on 

russian hill for 27 years retired and moved up to Oregon due to cost of living...

grubstake always been a  must stop and still is on my visits back, don't let the rich take away another
SF lichen

23. chris hastings (ZIP code: 94110)

24. Charles Myers (ZIP code: 95436)

25. Sid Franks (ZIP code: 94803)
Save our gay heritage

26. Patricia Wheeler (ZIP code: 94115)
Keep SF unique! __

Grubstake is original SF .. 

Save our neighborhood jewels!!! 

We want our affordable fun food! 

Polk Gulch needs Grubstake,,,

27. Christopher Vasquez (ZIP code: 94114)
Grubstake is an LGBTQ safe space and needs to be protected!

28. Chris Sandell (ZIP code: 94131)

29. Charles  Ford (ZIP code: 94110)

30. Derek  Boehringer  (ZIP code: 94102)

31. Dennis Harvey (ZIP code: 94109)



32. David Differding (ZIP code: 94114)

33. Donna Sachet  (ZIP code: 94114)

34. Duncan Ley (ZIP code: 94109)
We need the housing.  let's go!

35. Emily Weisensee (ZIP code: 94110)
Stop ripping the heart & soul out of SF!

36. Cedric Lavina (ZIP code: 94117)

37. hrayr khanjian (ZIP code: 94110)

38. Eric  Stern (ZIP code: 94114)
Please save this beloved space - one that has historical importance to San Francisco's queer
community.  Thank you!

39. susan goodfellow (ZIP code: 94109)
there is a reason that tourists come to sf and people who live want to have our historic famed
institutions   The Grubstake is one of them just look at it ! tell how many dinning places in SF look like
it !  If you take away places like the Grubstake you hurt more people in real estate values, Tourist
money and local long time residents !  LOOK at the big picture rather than some developer to put up a
sliver over valued housing     no one’s coming here to see that !

40. Brian Busta (ZIP code: 94114)

41. Joey Ereñeta (ZIP code: 94110)

42. gary johnson (ZIP code: 94109)

43. Gary Contreras (ZIP code: 94103)
The grubstake has been around for a long time. It has been on this lot 1525 Pine Street from my
understanding over 30 years.

44. Gerry McBride (ZIP code: 92264)

45. Nancy Mollenauer (ZIP code: 95492)

46. Gypsy Love (ZIP code: 94402)
Save Grubstake!

47. James Harrison (ZIP code: 94115)



48. mark chambers (ZIP code: 94114)
save the history. it will be shiny new for the rich queens next door.

49. Tracy Dietz (ZIP code: 94611)

50. Ian Renner (ZIP code: 94103)
More affordable housing now!

51. Isa DeFusco (ZIP code: 94702)

52. Richard Lopez (ZIP code: 94114)

53. Isabel Whittaker Walker (ZIP code: 94102)

54. Jeff Rombouts (ZIP code: 90810)

55. Jackalope  Bar  (ZIP code: 94109)
We love you!

56. jane ganim (ZIP code: 94109)
Please save the Grubstake!

57. Janet Witkosky (ZIP code: 94109)

58. JEFFREY NIGH (ZIP code: 94127)

59. Jason Lam (ZIP code: 94108)

60. Jason Hudak (ZIP code: 94103)

61. Joseph Engle (ZIP code: 95825)
Grubsteak was an important part of many of us in recovery in SF Fellowship after AA/NA meetings in
the area.  I got sober in SF starting in 2001.

62. John Christophel (ZIP code: 94122)

63. Jimmy Consos (ZIP code: 94109)

64. Juan Davila (ZIP code: 94102)
I think be great for all and bring more community for better City

65. John Goldsmith (ZIP code: 94114)
This is culturally significant, save our precious lgbt affirming spaces from gentrification.
#SaveHarveyMilkPlaza



66. James Seeman (ZIP code: 94109)

67. Joseph Roybal (ZIP code: 94110)

68. Jonathan Weisman (ZIP code: 94131)

69. Joni Weinstein (ZIP code: 94109)
Please save The Grubstake and allow the new affordable units to be built. Don’t let gentrifiers suck
the local color out of the neighborhood. We need to preserve the small gems that make San
Francisco what it is.

70. Joseph Barajas (ZIP code: 94109)

71. Joshua Alvarez (ZIP code: 94109)

72. Justin Elliott (ZIP code: 94114)
Yes to grubsteaks proposal!

73. John Twomey (ZIP code: 94109)

74. Jesse West (ZIP code: 94103)
THIS IS BY FAR THE BEST PROPOSAL I HAVE SEEN FOR A BUILDING IN SF!

75. Kenneth Henderson (ZIP code: 94115)
The Grubstake is an SF institution with a long history of supporting the LGBT community and other
segments. After nearly 6 years of addressing concerns by neighbors, it is time to move on and
approve the Grubstake's plans to preserve this important landmark.

76. Michael Kovacs (ZIP code: 94109)
screw those morons and their overpriced condos. they knew what they were getting into

77. Ken Walczak (ZIP code: 94122)

78. Liz Ver (ZIP code: 94142)
Keep this Project going! Grubsteak is a Staple to Frisco's night light. Best place to get a fire ass
burger and just some good ass food after partying on Polk Street.  The 3am Grub stop. Keep The City
The City PERIOD! 

GRUBSTEAK??

GRUBSTEAK??

GRUBSTEAK?

79. Lauren Gibson (ZIP code: 94117)

80. Lesley  Kraechan  (ZIP code: 94133)





99. Onllwyn Dixon (ZIP code: 94103)
I encourage the Board of Supervisors to reject the Austin residents’ relentless tactics to delay this
modest proposal and deny the meritless appeal.

100. Laura Overmann (ZIP code: 94010-5141)

101. Paul Quiroga (ZIP code: 94590)

102. PJ  Nachman (ZIP code: 94102)

103. Terry Penn (ZIP code: 94114)

104. Linda Ayres-Frederick (ZIP code: 94117)
Let's keep the best of SF alive. The Grubstake is a landmark for locals and visitors. It's time to keep
the best of our unique past preserved for future generations.

105. Patrick Esteban (ZIP code: 94086)

106. Brian Shire (ZIP code: 94103)

107. Esta Liederman (ZIP code: 94122)
Please save some of San Francisco's soul and provide housing for not just the rich.

108. Philip Stover (ZIP code: 94114)

109. Doug McKirahan (ZIP code: 94121)

110. Rene Colorado  (ZIP code: 94109)

111. Joseph Roland (ZIP code: 94102)

112. Roxanne Lucas (ZIP code: 94107)
Love, love, love Grubstake; spent many late nights eating here in the early 2000's. So many
significant places in SF have disappeared. It would be a tragedy if this gathering place disappeared
as well.

113. Ryan VanZuylen (ZIP code: 94102)
This is precisely what San Franciscans and the BOS clamor for: preservation of cultural institutions
that our City is known for and more affordable housing. Please consider voting against this appeal
and allowing the full 8 stories of new housing and rehabilitation of this landmark diner.

114. Saara Muscat (ZIP code: 94109)

115. Sally Spencer (ZIP code: 94115)




